

Murray State's Digital Commons

Board of Regents Meeting Minutes

Digitized Collections

8-3-1973 12:00 AM

1973-08-03

Board of Regents, Murray State University

Follow this and additional works at: https://digitalcommons.murraystate.edu/borminutes

Recommended Citation

Board of Regents, Murray State University, "1973-08-03" (1973). *Board of Regents Meeting Minutes*. 402. https://digitalcommons.murraystate.edu/borminutes/402

This Article is brought to you for free and open access by the Digitized Collections at Murray State's Digital Commons. It has been accepted for inclusion in Board of Regents Meeting Minutes by an authorized administrator of Murray State's Digital Commons. For more information, please contact msu.digitalcommons@murraystate.edu.

Upon call of Chairman H. Glenn Doran, the Board of Regents of Murray State University met in regular quarterly session at 10:00 a.m., C.D.T., August 3, 1973, in the Board Room of the Administration Building on the campus of the University.

Mr. Doran was in the Chair presiding, and the following members of the Board were present: Dave Curtis, M. D. Hassell, Charles E. Howard, Bob T. Long, A. B. Mitchell, Graves (Skip) Neale, O. B. Springer, and Harry Lee Waterfield.

Absent was E. G. Adams.

Present for the meeting were Dr. Harry M. Sparks, President; Mrs. Patsy R. Dyer, Secretary of the Board; Dr. Thomas B. Hogancamp, Vice President for Administrative Affairs; and Dr. W. G. Read, Vice President for Academic Affairs.

The Chairman noted the presence of a quorum for the transaction of business and called the meeting to order.

Agenda

President Sparks presented the following Agenda:

AGENDA for Meeting of the Board of Regents August 3, 1973

I. <u>Minutes of the Meetings of the Board of Regents held on July 21, 1973, and July 28, 1973.</u>

II. Faculty Personnel/Payroll Items

Resignations, Terminations:

NameAssignmentEffectiveWallace StevensonInstructor, Voc.-Tech. Education6-11-73Thomas NuzumAsst. Prof., Art8- 3-73Jack D. NanceAsst. Prof., Sociology & Anthropology8-31-73

Adjustments in Salary:

Name	Assignment	Change/Explanation
John Taylor	Educational Serv.	\$525.00 additional for teaching extra class in Spring semester; omitted from previous list.
John E. Fortin	Assoc. Prof., Voc Tech. Education	\$300.00 extra for director of Cosmetology Institute 7-23-73 7-27-73.
Lanette Thurman	Inst., VocTech. Education	\$75.00 extra for consultant in Cosmetology Institute 7-23-73 7-27-73.
Lloyd P. Jacks	Assoc. Prof., Voc Tech. Education	\$50.00 extra for consultant in Cosmetology Institute 7-23-73 7-27-73.

Name	Assignment	Salary	Effective
John R. Ingram, Jr.	Supv. & Inst., PREP Program	\$ 6,000.00	for 7-23-7312-21-73; payable monthly.
Jeff M. Moser	Inst., PREP Program	4,600.00	for 7-16-7312-14-73; payable monthly.
Margaret L. Baird	Asst. Prof., Library Science	12,000.00	(Acad) 8-1-73
Vicki Rivers	Instructor, VocTech. Educ.	150.00	for 7-23-737-27-73
	Cosmetology Institute		
Charles F. O'Neil, Jr.	Asst. Prof., History &	10,500.00	(Acad) 8-1-73
	Sociology & Anthropology		
James L. Clark	Instructor, Spec. Educ.	9,400.00	(Acad) 8-1-73
Beulah E. Miller	Professor, Nursing	16,000.00	(Acad) 8-1-73
Isabel R. Lopez	Instructor, Nursing	11,000.00	(Acad) 8-1-73
Mary Jo Arndt	P-T Inst., Nursing	4,200.00	(Acad) 8-1-73
Roy E. Gillaspy	Asst. Prof., Ind. Educ.	13,500.00	(Acad) 8-1-73
Betty Wagar	P-T Inst., Special Educ.	500.00	for Fall Semester
			1973; payable 12-31-73
Michael A. Brun	Instructor, Art	10,000.00	(Acad) 8-1-73
	John R. Ingram, Jr. Jeff M. Moser Margaret L. Baird Vicki Rivers Charles F. O'Neil, Jr. James L. Clark Beulah E. Miller Isabel R. Lopez Mary Jo Arndt Roy E. Gillaspy Betty Wagar	John R. Ingram, Jr.Supv. & Inst., PREP ProgramJeff M. MoserInst., PREP ProgramMargaret L. BairdAsst. Prof., Library ScienceVicki RiversInstructor, VocTech. Educ. Cosmetology InstituteCharles F. O'Neil, Jr.Asst. Prof., History & Sociology & AnthropologyJames L. ClarkInstructor, Spec. Educ. Professor, NursingBeulah E. MillerProfessor, NursingIsabel R. LopezInstructor, NursingMary Jo ArndtP-T Inst., NursingRoy E. GillaspyAsst. Prof., Ind. Educ.Betty WagarP-T Inst., Special Educ.	John R. Ingram, Jr.Supv. & Inst., PREP Program\$ 6,000.00Jeff M. MoserInst., PREP Program4,600.00Margaret L. BairdAsst. Prof., Library Science12,000.00Vicki RiversInstructor, VocTech. Educ. Cosmetology Institute150.00Charles F. O'Neil, Jr.Asst. Prof., History & Sociology & Anthropology10,500.00James L. ClarkInstructor, Spec. Educ.9,400.00Beulah E. MillerProfessor, Nursing16,000.00Isabel R. LopezInstructor, Nursing11,000.00Mary Jo ArndtP-T Inst., Nursing4,200.00Roy E. GillaspyAsst. Prof., Ind. Educ.13,500.00Betty WagarP-T Inst., Special Educ.500.00

Eagle University -- Courses for 1973 Summer Term:

Name	Course	Amount
Harry Furches	Art 101	\$565.00
Delbert Honchul	Management 551	595.00
Kent Forrester	English 102	565.00
Paul Lyons	Industrial Education 110	565.00
David Elliott	Music 105	565.00
Charles Homra	Psychology 180	595.00
Jack Johnson	Sociology 133	565.00

III. <u>Staff Personnel/Payroll Items</u>

Resignations, Terminations:

Name	Assignment	Effective
Woodrow Norsworthy	Winslow Cafeteria	8-15-73
Sue W. Heiss	Secretary, Dean of Women	8- 8-73
Lynn H. Cathy	Clerk, Library	7-31-73
Thomas Wilson	Grad. Asst., Chemistry	8- 1-73

Adjustments in Salary:

Name	Assignment	Change/Explanation
Lynn Parker	Custodian, Physical Plant	From \$2.03 p/hr to \$2.13 p/hr, effective 7-1-73
Dennis Jackson	Custodian, Physical Plant	From \$1.84 p/hr to \$2.00 p/hr, effective 7-1-73

Employment:

	Name	Assignment	Salary	Effective
(R) (R)	Mary J. Jarrett Sally A. Van Ark	Secretary, Art Sec., Political Science	\$320.00 p/mo 169.60 p/mo	8-16-73 8-16-73
(R) (NP)	Susan E. Knight Nigel Holderby	P-T Clerk, Library Sec., Counseling & Test. Center	292.50 p/mo 350.00 p/mo	8- 1-73 8-13-73

Employment of Graduate Assistants:

Name	Department	Salary	<u>Fall</u>	Spring
Mark S. Norris	Chemistry	\$225.00	Х	х
Ralph A. Klingensmith	Industrial Education	225.00	Х	Х
Russell W. Brethauer	Psychology	112.50	Х	Х
Robert G. Dickman	Psychology	112.50	Х	х
Michael R. James	Psychology	225.00	Х	Х
Stephanie S. Davidson	Psychology	225.00	Х	X
Ed A. Ross	Psychology - CISR	90.00*	8-1-73	
	,		5-31-7	4
Sarah L. Sterling	Psychology - Fantasy Grant	180.00*	8-1-73	
5	, .,		5-31-7	4
James E. Phillips	Art	225.00	Х	
Rebecca N. Humphries	Art ·	225.00	Х	
Wendell P. Clare	Art	225.00	Х	

*reimbursed by Foundation through grants

IV. Items for Consideration

A. Renewal of Murray State University Group Insurance ProgramB. Bid Proposals for SHIELD 1973-74

1. Photographic Service

2. Printing

V. <u>Reports</u>

- A. Report of the Committee on Credits and Certification
- B. Report of the Thomas P. Norris Student Loan Fund
- C. Report of the National Direct Student Loan Fund
- D. Financial Report
- E. Annual Report of the President

VI. Other Matters

Respectfully submitted, /s/ H. M. Sparks President

Manth les

Minutes of the Meetings of the Board of Regents held on July 21, 1973, and July 28, 1973, Approved

Mr. Springer moved that the Board approve the Minutes of the Meeting of the Board of Regents held on July 21, 1973, and the Minutes of the Meeting of the Board of Regents held on July 28, 1973, as received. Dr. Howard seconded and the motion carried unanimously.

Faculty Personnel/Payroll Items, Accepted and Approved

Mr. Waterfield moved that in keeping with the recommendation of the President the Board accept and approve the Faculty Personnel and Payroll Items as listed in Item II of the Agenda. Mr. Long seconded and the roll was called on the adoption of the motion with the following voting: Mr. Curtis, aye; Dr. Howard, aye; Mr. Long, aye; Mr. Mitchell, aye; Mr. Neale, aye; Mr. Springer, aye; Mr. Waterfield, aye; and Mr. Doran, aye.

Staff Personnel/Payroll Items, Accepted and Approved

Mr. Waterfield moved that in keeping with the recommendation of the President the Board accept and approve the Staff Personnel and Payroll Items as listed in Item III of the Agenda. Mr. Long seconded and the roll was called on the adoption of the motion with the following voting: Mr. Curtis, aye; Dr. Hassell, aye; Dr. Howard, aye; Mr. Long, aye; Mr. Mitchell, aye; Mr. Neale, aye; Mr. Springer, aye; Mr. Waterfield, aye; and Mr. Doran, aye.

52

Renewal of Murray State University Group Insurance Program, Approved

In keeping with the recommendation of the Insurance Committee, Dr. Hassell moved that the Board renew the Murray State University group insurance policy with Investors Heritage Life Insurance Company for another policy year, September 1, 1973, through August 31, 1974.

Mr. Long seconded and the roll was called on the adoption of the motion with the following voting: Mr. Curtis, aye; Dr. Hassell, pass; Dr. Howard, aye; Mr. Long, aye; Mr. Mitchell, aye; Mr. Neale, aye; Mr. Springer, aye; Mr. Waterfield, pass; and Mr. Doran, pass. Motion carried.

SHIELD Contracts, Awarded

In keeping with the recommendation of the committee named to examine bids for photographic services and printing the 1974 SHIELD, Dr. Howard moved that the Board approve awarding the contract for photographic services for the 1974 SHIELD to Colonna Studios, New York, and the contract for printing the 1974 SHIELD to Hunter Publishing Company, Winston-Salem, North Carolina.

Mr. Mitchell seconded and the roll was called on the adoption of the motion with the following voting: Mr. Curtis, aye; Dr. Hassell, aye; Dr. Howard, aye; Mr. Long, aye; Mr. Mitchell, aye; Mr. Neale, aye; Mr. Springer, aye; Mr. Waterfield, aye; and Mr. Doran, aye.

Report of the Committee on Credits and Graduation, Approved

Those receiving degrees on August 3, 1973, are as follows:

Bachelor of Science in Agriculture

Roger Dale Cooper Joseph J. Dolchan, Jr. Bharat Raj Gautama

George R. Moses Harold K. Pile Stephen Orton Watkins

David W. Watson

Bachelor of Music Education

Valentino Louis Angrosini Jonathan Shaw Ashworth Delores Lee Bowles Michael Allen Denny Cathi L. Eagan Patricia Esce Ferguson

Ginna Lawrence Jane Brown Myers Roger Dale Prince Charles George Tedeschi Charles Dennis Travis Sandra Lea Wood

Bachelor of Science in Home Economics

Rita Jan Hailey

Bachelor of Science

Jerry Don Adams Guthrie H. Allen, Jr. James Iven Armbruster, II Margaret L. Baker Robert Kent Barnes Saundra Gail Barrett Ellen Louise Berrill Barbara Allette Bockle Gregory Paul Borkenhagen Robert W. Brame Judy Davis Brent Wesley Dale Broadway Phillip Glen Brown LaNita Ruth Buhrman Joyce Jean Bundrent Phyllis Ann Cannon Michael Alan Cartmill Debra Lynn Causey Katherine Ann Cave Jan Reagan Chase

Edward H. Cheely Robert Warren Chilcutt Terrell Lee Clark Terry L. Clayton Brenda Kay Cobb Jan Cockerill Al Colley Jonna Lee Coulter Donna Peeples Counce Glenda Steele Dedmon Carol A. D'Elia Phyllis Jean Dickerson Blane A. Dolges Alfred Hicks Eckles, III James Edward Egbert Kathy Sue Eli Ellen E. Eubanks Richard J. Fingur Mae Helen Blaine Frazier Wanda Fay Garrett

John Thomas Gingles Joseph C. Glorioso Rocky Powell Grace Lindy Leialoha Gresham James Dennis Griffin James David Hagan Kathy Wells Hagan Deborah Hinton Hart John Joseph Heltsley Charles Wayne Henry Danny L. Henson Billie Sue Hicks Kiyohiko Hirasawa Kathy McNeely Hodge Judith A. Holtman Scott Douglas Huff Eugene Carl Jaeger Frederick Jones Joseph Patrick Jones William Edward Kerrick William Henry Lancaster Joseph Mangino Edith Ann Mathis Mary A. McClure William H. McCormick, Jr. David Michael Melson Susan Miller Steven Dwain Moore Christi Ann Moser Larry Robert Muma Randa Lynne Nabors Denise Kay Naihe Debra Lee Nall Steven Lee Nance Deloris Anne Nickum Mark Stephen Norris James Michael O'Bryant Tom P. O'Dell Rebecca Susan O'Keefe Michael Wayne Oleksy James Bradford Onkst

William Edward Orr Charles Allen Parrent William Nall Pasco Diedra Lee Pelley Donna Jo Pope Catherine Theresa Anderson Postma Martha Rivers Puckett George W. Radford James Michael Rahm Mary Ann Romaneck Randle Lee Ryan Alexis Anne Sandefur William Paul Schweitzer Barbara Oakley Sirls Timothy Melvin Slattery James Gary Smith Mikel Dwaine Smith James L. Sowders Rodney Lynn Steele Jo Ann Stone Terry Wayne Stubblefield James Thomas Summersgill Carol J. Taylor Kendalynn Janice Taylor Lettie Ellen Taylor Robert Michael Tepe Philip W. Theobald Charles William Thomas Emma Lee Thorpe Suzanne Warren Regina Carter Webb Robert L. Weis David Boyce Wells Cheryl Shemwell Williams David Y. Wilson Deborah Ann Woodson Bettie Sue Wright Hugh S. Wright Samuel Depp York Kenneth Clayborne Zellich, Jr. Edward Stephen Ziegler, II

Deborah Ann Woodson

Bachelor of Science in Nursing

Diane Leah Berger

Elizabeth Ann Mix

Bachelor of Science in Vocational Technical Education

Mary G. Sledd

W. Ralph Sparrow

Bachelor of Arts

Sara Lorrece Atherton Gordon T. Bryant Deborah S. Fields Carl Donald Mowery, Jr. Connie Simpson Scoggins

Bachelor of Science in Business

Lawrence E. Alderson, Jr. Sarah Joyce Alderson Dennis Craig Arndt Anna Lancaster Barclay Chester Arthur Byrn, III Philip Joseph Carrico Thomas Breckinridge Cayce Doyle Thomas Clark Michael Warren Copeland Eugene M. Doda, Jr. Paul Wilson Glaser Albert Frank Heiss Charles S. Hoover Charles R. Lucas Lucy Ann McWherter Charles William Marley, Jr. Jerry D. Minton David Randall Peace, Jr. Jose Luis Pino R. Sharon Elaine Sparks Charles Milton Taylor Rodney Clark Vincent

Gina Cheryl Adams Jerry Franklin Ainley Wendell C. Arnold Walter Stanley Asbridge Mary Craft Ashby Pamela Ann Spikes Baird Charlotte Ann Ballance Catherine A. Barclay Faye V. Beyer Sarah Jane Bichon David Raymond Blackburn Teresa P. Blankenship David Gene Brooks Audrey Richardson Brown Pamela Whitfield Bruce Donna McDowell Brugger Nancy R. Buffington Sue Horne Bull Ronald L. Burgess, Jr. Christine J. Campbell Shelby Jean Caudill W. Garland Certain Norma Troutt Chenault Mary Lee Clark Donald Owen Clayton Barbara Milburn Cooper Linda Hill Cope Anne Blanton Crosswy Patricia A. Denton William David Denton Donald Jackson Dismore Chervl Jane Douthitt Eugene Malcolm Eagleson Franklin Marion Marcellus Easterly Roger Allen Edmondson Jerry Brummett Escue Linda Hogan Feltner Virginia Caudill Foster Ann Foy Electa May Gaddis Alice Kay Gantt Anita Louise Gholson Amanda Ann Glass James Edward Glass Barbara Brown Goodwin Harold Wayne Grace Dorothy Sue Hamilton Fleetis Paschal Hannah, Jr. Melva M. Hargrove Harrietta T. Harper James Edward Harrell Jerilane Lovett Harrell Delura Young Hill Mary Hopson Hocking Phyllis Hart Houseworth Sharon Smith Howe Lena Sue Ingram Mary Etta Johnson Susan Blair Johnston Shelia Kaye Jones Betty Ruth Kincer Edwindeen Knuath Betty Dent Lampkin Sister Louisine Langevin Thomas Raye Larget Patricia Gayle Lassiter

Billie Borling Lee Mary Lou Levan Wayne William Lohaus Terrence A. Long Sanford Franklin Lowery Gerald Dean Maberry Donald Gene Mabry Rosaline Hurley Marshall Wash Martin, Jr. Mary Ellen McCarthy E. Reita Moody Kay Webb Morris Beverly Haman Myers Thomas Waller Nagel Jerry Lee Neal Carolyn Odom Oettinger Marion Belote O'Rourke Nannette Strong Parish William T. Patterson, Jr. Judith Prince Peeler Vador A. Perry Betty A. Pettus Michael Petty Maxine White Pool Vicki Sue Quertermous Rosa Jane Ray Charles E. Rayburn Lois Ann Reinehr Patricia Trigg Render Nancy Duff Richardson Margie Nell Rickard Don E. Ringstaff Linda Lee Ritz Brenda Ellen Roberts Sue Williams Roberts Mitchell Garnett Rowland, Jr. Sharon Smith Rowland Nancy Katherine Ruoff Ruby Estes Samples Barbara Ann Scott Barbara Jean Shadburne Rebecca Lane Sims Charles Henry Smith Judith Diane Smith Larry Gene Smith Renca Dill Solomon Carol Friedrich Stedelin Glenda Gail Stephens Phillip Roger Stewart Sonja Ellen Thiel Ralph Joseph Thomure Joyce F. Thweatt Maurice Tucker Mary Caroline Tyler Virginia Hurdle Wall Rebecca Wallace Jane Underwood West Elizabeth Ann Wicker Donald Edward Williams Jerry Lee Williams Pearl Irene Wood Phyllis P. Wood Phyllis Heithcock Wright Jane Watts Wyatt Van Crider Yandell Faye Robinson Yopp

Gerald L. Young

Elizabeth Page Belote Janice Ann Campbell Susan Bushart Cardwell Marie Wells Coutu Berry Franklin Craig, III Janice Arlene Donham Carol Rogers Elliott Thomas Alexander Halinski David John Kempf Henry Herman Kunath Dorothy J. Lund Denis John Potts Harolyn Hamilton Rasche Adam Ruschival, III James D. Sanders Linda J. Stegner Raymond Charles Stephenson Pamela Corbin Trevathan Kenneth Lawrence Vincent Patricia Ann Ward Ruthanne Williamson Robert L. Wimer

Tommy Dale Wynn

Master of Arts in College Teaching

Lewis Edward Baber Donald Neil Doom Terry Denise Lichtenberg David Alan Sellars

Master of Music Education

John A. Bennett Edmund James Duhy, Jr. Elizabeth Barrett Hatchett Richard Purdy Neathamer

Master of Arts in Teaching

Teresa L. Arwood Thor Norman Connally Wanda Laird Gough Gordon Scott Griffin Marilyn Shelton Ladd Betty Lou Morgan James Richard Ruffell, III Sandra Kay Tatum

Rebecca Colley Travis

Master of Business Administration

Max Shelton Allen Mohammad Hassan Hassas Betty Lou Hill Stephen Christopher McDaniel Satyaprakash Saraswat

Master of Science

Ahmad Afzali Rosalind Marie Anderson Marcia Rudd Ayer Sharon Yvonne Ball Guy Arthur Battle, III Karen Lynn Blankenship Franklin Dennie Buckler Aileen T. Bumphus Robert N. Bush, Jr. Hattie M. Chambliss Larry Oliver Conway William Michael Davis Terrence Dean Duncan Flora Ellen Freeland Michael Rudolph Freeland John Roy Griffin Arnold L. Harris

Ahmed Brother Hashemi James Russell Hayes Richard Joseph Hollinden Rennie Seay Holt, Jr. Richard John Josephson Cathy Arendall Lassiter Cameron Goode Love John Wade Miller Pamela Lassiter Murphy Frederic Carroll Park Marilyn Miller Richards Sandy James Rogers Kathleen Anne Schlösser David Allen Shields Marcia Campbell Simmons Paul Journey Stoner Michael Rhea Wilson

John Alan Wolf

Specialist in Education

James William Trader

Jean H. Bennett Donald Neil Doom Phillip John Hall Terry Denise Lichtenberg

Dale L. Schweizer David Alan Sellars Willie Joe Sigler Kenneth Raymond Sinclair

Richard H. Snyder

Persons who received degrees on August 31, 1973, are as follows:

Bachelor of Science

Chi-Hua Aw Willard Yarnell Ayer Joy Sligh Bonner Linda Marie Czajkowski Anita Gail Copeland Driskill Judith Gail Hawkins Van Bert Henning Ruth Ann Henson Larry J. Hill Fronza Gail Hodge George Thomas Hughes Nancy Merrell Hutchens Thomas L. Lewellyn Richard J. Lewis Lois Marie McGee McCann Judy Stice McKamey Dolores Hart Niemann Charles E. Robertson, Jr. Edward Thomas Rudolph Joann Siemanowski Bélinda Sue Smiley Randy Alfred Smith Richard B. Still Thomas Glenn Vaughn Marlene B. Vinson Isaac James Wilford, Jr.

Bachelor of Arts

John Richard Hannula

Bachelor of Science in Business

Larry Patrick Greenwell Randall Lee Oliver Joseph Raymond Simon John Weymann Voelker

Patricia Ann Knight

Ann Hunter Williams

Bachelor of Music Education

Carolyn Rae Sloan

Master of Arts in Education

Karen Cunningham Baker Donald Lloyd Billman Earl W. Brizendine Lela P. Carter Henry Clifton Champion Julie Louise Chumbler Linda Sue Crow Lavern Crump Terry Davenport Robert H. Divine Melinda W. Hampton Jane Carol Holland Helen M. Houston Elizabeth Karen Huey Martha Dowdy Hughes Lucy Holman Hunt George Glenn Karsner Willie Minor, Jr. William Lonnie Moffitt Ronald Edward Morgan Anita Louise Mumford Sherry Curling Shoemaker David Allen Smith Lilly Evelyn Wallis John H. Worthman Russell Lynn White

Martha Jean Wilson

Master of Arts

Obinna Duru Achumba

57

Master of Arts in College Teaching

Daniel Edward Brady

Master of Business Administration

Ronald Ray Haverstock

Master of Science

James Michael Castaldi Donald Cruse Fisher Robert Edward Morris Ann G. Nagel Judy Goetz Pritchett J. D. Rayburn, II Lynn Allan Sandusky Vickie Lynn Via Sharber

Specialist in College Teaching

Thomas Francis Curry

Bruce David Olson Lanette Howard Thurman

Persons receiving Associate Degrees on August 3 and August 31, 1973, are as follows:

Bruce Lloyd Eilert	Associate	of	Science	in VTE
Donnella Sue Hayden	Associate	of	Science	in Child Development
Robert L. Hazelrigg	Associate	of	Science	in VTE
Mary Jannette Jarrett	Associate	\mathbf{of}	Arts in	Business
Thomas John Resig	Associate	of	Science	in Electronics Tech.
Lester Hart Woody	Associate	of	Science	in VTE

Dr. Hassell moved that the foregoing report of the Committee on Credits and Graduation be received, that the degrees be granted and that the diplomas be awarded as stated therein. Mr. Springer seconded and the motion carried unanimously.

Report of the Thomas P. Norris Student Loan Fund, Received

The Board received the Report of the Thomas P. Norris Student Loan Fund.

Report of the National Direct Student Loan Fund, Received

The Board received the Report of the National Direct Student Loan Fund.

Financial Report, Received

Murray State University Financial Report To The President and Board of Regents For the Period July 1, 1972 thru June 30, 1973

I. Income and Expenditure Statement

A. Current General Funds

B

	Net Income Net Expenditures		\$15,561,438.11 <u>15,119,451.72</u>		
	Balance Current General	Funds		\$	441,986,39
3.	Current Restricted Funds				
	Net Income Net Expenditures		\$11,923,730.55 _9,979,891.77		
	Balance Current Restric	ted Funds		\$1	,943,838.78

•

	с.	Unexpended Plant FundsCapital Construction		
		Net Income Net Expenditures	\$20,676,822.32 18,008,592.10	
		Balance Unexpended Plant Funds		\$2,668,230.22
	D.	Retirement of Indebtedness Funds		
		Net Income Net Expenditures	\$10,033,231.18 	
		Balance Retirement of Indebtedness Funds		\$ <u>2,909,379.48</u>
	Tot	al Balances of all funds		\$ <u>7,963,434.87</u>
II.	Sta	tement of Funds Balance		
	Α.	Current General Funds		
		Reserve for Imprest Cash Encumbrances Outstanding Free Balance	\$ 217,500.00 83,717.49 140,768.90	
		Total		\$ 441,986.39
	в.	Current Restricted Funds		
		1. Housing & Dining System Revenue Fund		
		Cash in Banks \$ 32,072.91 Investments 726,415.85	\$ 758,488.76*	
		*Earmarked for University Center \$412,965.50 Available for Housing & Dining 345,523.26 \$758,488.76		
		2. Consolidated Educational Building Revenue Fu	und	
		Cash in Bank \$ 20,579.42 Investments 1,164,770.60	\$ 1,185,350.02	
		Total		\$1,943,838.78
	с.	Unexpended Plant Funds		
		Contracts not Awarded Contingency	\$ 426,409.95 2,241,820.27	
		Total		\$2,668,230.22
	D.	Retirement of Indebtedness Funds		
		1. Housing & Dining System Bond Fund		
		Cash \$ 1,449.73 Investments 954,848.76	\$ 956,298.49	
		2. Housing & Dining System Repair & Reserve Fund		
		Cash \$ 30,229.20 Investments 422,665.32	\$ 452,894.52	
		3. Privately Held Housing & Dining System Escrow Fund		
		Investments	\$ 35,586.25	

Financial Report (Cont'd.)

	4. Consolidated H	Ed. Bldg. Bon	d Fund		
	Cash Investments		\$ 3,592.56 <u>1,461,007.66</u>	\$ <u>1,464,600.22</u>	
	Total				\$ <u>2,909,379.48</u>
	Total Balance	All Funds			\$ <u>7,963,434.87</u>
III.	Statement of Investmen	nts			
	Housing & Dining Syste Consolidated Ed. Bldg.	Bond Fund Repair & M Escrow Fun	aint. Fund d	<pre>\$ 726,415.85 954,848.76 422,665.32 35,586.25 1,164,770.60 1,464,600.22</pre>	•
	Total Investments				\$ <u>4,768,887.00</u>
	All investments are ca except the Housing & D of Deposit.				
IV.	Statement of Bonds Out	standing			
	Housing & Dining Syste Privately Held Housing System Revenue Bonds	g & Dining	nds	\$ 13,422,000 35,000	
	Consolidated Ed. Bldg.		ds	24,853,000	
	Total Bonds Outsta	inding			\$ <u>38,310,000.00</u>
v.	Statement of Operation	IS			
	1. Farm				
	Receipts				\$ 78,917.37
	Expenditures Salaries & Wages Veterinary & Tes Travel Current Operatin Capital Outlay	sting		\$ 33,742.80 3,168.80 232.66 58,698.44 898.85	\$ <u>96,741.55</u>
	Total Expenditures	Exceeding R	eceipts		\$ (17,824.18)
	2. Food Service - Sta	atement of Op	erations May 16,	1972, May 15, 19	973
			THOROUGHBRED SNACK BAR	WINSLOW CAFETERIA	HART HALL SNACK BAR
	Receipts				
	Cash Sales Meal Tickets Sales to Other	Units	\$109,569.10 _ 	\$ 43,424.78 692,135.00 2,544.34	\$ 68,408.17 _
	Total		\$109,569.10	\$738,104.12	\$ 68,408.17
	Expenditures				
	Salaries and Wa Food Products Other Current I	-	\$ 65,249.42 53,174.71 14,589.06	\$230,895.90 309,093.98 32,280.44	\$ 31,576.70 28,530.80 3,276.28
	Total		\$ <u>133,013.19</u>	\$ <u>572,270.32</u>	\$ <u>63,383.78</u>
	Profit for Peri	od	\$(23,444.09)	<u>\$165,833.80</u>	\$ 5,024.39

Total Profit from Food Service Operations for Period

.

\$147,414.10

60

Financial Report (Cont'd.)

VI.

3. Recreation - Statement of Operations July 1, 1972, -- May 15, 1973

	STUDENT UNION RECREATION ROOM	HART HALL REATION ROOM
Receipts		
Pool Vending Commission	\$ 2,493.52 <u>31.09</u>	\$ 4,956.40 <u>37.14</u>
Total	\$ 2,524.61	\$ 4,993.54
Expenditures		
Salaries and Wages Other Current Expenses	\$ 3,064.17 6.90	\$ 3,400.09 727.43
Total	\$ 3,071.07	\$ 4,127.52
Total Profit or Loss from Rec Room Operations for Period	creation \$ <u>(546.46)</u>	\$ 866.02
Total Profit from Recreation Room	n Operations for Period	\$ 319.56
4. Campus Vending Concession		
Gross Sales by Concessions Op Commissions received by Murra		\$ 149,288.24 35,960.31
5. Campus Laundry Concession		
Gross Sales by Concessions Op Commissions received by Murra		\$ 15,336.60 3,893.67
6. University Bookstore		
Sales Cost of Goods Sold Gross Profit from Sales	\$537,281.66 400,269.23 137,012.43	
Other Income Gross Profit from Operations	<u>321.08</u> 137,333.51	
Operating Costs	114,342.84	
Net Income from University Bookst	core	\$ 22,990.67*
*Capital expenditures in the amou the store were paid from this amo		
7. Murray State News		
Receipts		\$ 17,269.37
Expenditures		
Salaries Travel Printing	\$ 16,008.00 399.64 13,318.15	
Current Operating Expense Capital Outlay	1,297.42 625.12	\$ 31,648.33
Total Expenditures Exceeding Rece	ipts	\$ (14,378.96)
Central Agency Fund		
Balance plus Receipts Expenditures	\$613,537.44 <u>288,961.41</u>	
Fund Balance		\$ <u>324,576.03</u> *
*Fund Balance Cash Certificates of Deposit	\$174,576.03 <u>150,000.00</u> \$324,576.03	

VII. Accounts Receivable

Spring, 1973	\$ 3,513.35
Fall, 1972	3,277.97
Summer, 1972	125.00
Prior to Summer, 1972	6,219.82
	\$13,136.14

The Board received the foregoing Financial Report for the period July 1, 1972, through June 30, 1973.

1972-73 Annual Report of the President, Received

The Board received the 1972-73 Annual Report of the President to the Board of Regents.

1972-73 REPORT OF THE PRESIDENT TO THE BOARD OF REGENTS MURRAY STATE UNIVERSITY

FOREWARD

The Golden Anniversary of Murray State University was celebrated during the academic year 1972-73.

The fall enrollment was 7,257 with a full time equivalent enrollment of 6,056. The inflationary economic condition has forced a number of students to work part time in order to support the cost of attending the University. During this academic period, the University awarded 1,666 degrees. In the three Commencement periods included in the academic year, 195 baccalaureate students were graduated with honors: Cum Laude--115; Magna Cum Laude--47; Summa Cum Laude--33. In the second semester of the academic year, 26.4% of the under-graduate students made the Academic Dean's List by attaining a standing of 3.3 or better. I attribute this academic success to the quality of our students, the dedication of our professors, and to the splendid programs that are now being provided in our high schools and elementary grades.

Included in this report is a brief summary of the services of the University to the students, alumni, and the general public. Individual reports of the schools are included which show any changes in programs and the outstanding accomplishments above and beyond the regular teaching assignments of the faculty. Brief summaries are given on the services of the library, the success of our athletic program in which we won the All-Sports Trophy of the Ohio Valley Conference, and a report on the renovation and progress in construction of our physical plant.

On behalf of the faculty and staff, I wish to thank the members of the Board of Regents for their dedicated service to Murray State and for their untiring support in promoting the effective service of this University to the Commonwealth of Kentucky and to our Nation.

> Respectfully submitted, /s/ H. M. Sparks President

Enrollment

*Enrollment for Fall, 1972 Freshman 1954 Sophomore 1313 Junior 1212 Senior 1547 Undergraduate Total 6026 Graduate 1231 7257 Total **Enrollment for Spring, 1973 1825 Freshman

Sophomore	1159
Junior	1065
Senior	1494
Undergraduate Total	. 5543
Graduate	1280
Total	6823

In 1972, upper-division (Junior, Senior, and Graduate) enrollment on a head-count basis was 55% of the total. This is a slight increase over 1971, and is a continuation of a trend which began several years ago.

*Includes 136 enrolled at Eagle University
**Includes 241 at Eagle University

Grade Distribution

		A	B	C	D	E	Other*
Fall, 1971	No.	8,765	10,311	7,714	2,312	1,422	2,610
(33,134)	%	26	31	23	7	4	8
Spring, 1972	No.	8,673	9,152	6,330	1,783	1,331	1,461
(28,730)	%	30	32	22	6	5	5
Total, 1971-72	No.	17,438	19,463	14,244	4,095	2,753	4,071
(61,864)	%	28	31	23	7	4	7
Fall, 1972	No.	8,623	9,522	6,780	2,184	1,486	3,173
(31,768)	%	27	30	21	7	5	1.0
Spring, 1973	No.	8,818	8,402	5,896	1,827	1,325	2,042
(28,310)	%	31	30	21	6	5	7
Total, 1972-73	No.	17,441	17,924	12,676	4,011	2,811	5,215
(60,067)	%	29	30	21	6	5	8

Note: Figures do not include freshman orientation in fall semesters.

ı

*X, I or P

Degrees Conferred

	Aug.	Dec.	May
	1972	1972	1973
Associate Degrees	4	2	15
Bachelors Degrees	245	337	611
Masters Degrees	270	52	117
Specialist Degrees	<u>9</u>	<u>1</u>	<u>3</u>
Total	528	392	746

TOTAL NUMBER OF DEGREES GRANTED IN AUGUST, 1972; DECEMBER, 1972; AND MAY, 1973

Bachelor of Science in Agriculture Bachelor of Music Education Bachelor of Music Bachelor of Science in Home Economics Bachelor of Science Bachelor of Arts Bachelor of Science in Nursing Bachelor of Science in Business Bachelor of Fine Arts Bachelor of Science in Vocational Technical Education	45 37 2 4 812 67 36 157 10 3	
Total Bachelors Degrees		1,193
Master of Arts in Education Master of Arts Master of Arts in Teaching Master of Arts in College Teaching Master of Business Administration Master of Music Education Master of Science	269 39 10 7 26 6 82	(20
Total Masters Degrees		439
Specialist in Education	4	

<u>9</u> Specialist in College Teaching Total Specialist Degrees Associate Degrees 1,666 Total Degrees Conferred

13

21

1,191

Total Number of Degrees awarded since the founding of the University-21,360

Bachelors Degrees	17,628
Masters Degrees	3,606
Specialist Degrees	40
Associate Degrees	86

Continuing Education

Students Who Have Completed Off-Campus Residence Courses:

Graduates	817
Undergraduates	355
Auditors	19
Total	

Students Who Have Completed Off-Campus Residence Courses at Eagle University:

.

Graduates	55	
Undergraduates	693	
Auditors	3	
Total		751

Students Who Have Completed Off-Campus Study Center Courses (Extension Credit):

Graduates	116
Undergraduates	84
Auditors	3
Total	

Students Who Have Completed Continuing Education Units (Non-academic) Courses:

Correspondence Enrollment:

Active Enrollment as of 6-30-72 New Enrollment 7-1-72 through 6-30-73	250 138	
Total Enrollment Serviced during year		388
Courses Dropped 7-1-72 through 6-30-73 Courses Inactivated 6-30-73	22 109	
Courses Completed 7-1-72 through 6-30-73	112	243
Active Enrollment as of 6-30-73		145

Graduate School Enrollment

	Enrolled	Increase Over Same Semester, 1971-72
Fall, 1972	1211	19.5%
Spring, 1973	1280	12.5%
Summer, 1973	909	(Count Not complete)
Degrees Conferred:		
August 3 and 31, 1972	278	
December 21, 1972	53	
May 4 and 31, 1973	120	
Total	45	51

Programs Dropped

Upon the recommendation of the Southern Association of Secondary Schools and Colleges, the graduate programs in French, Geography, German, and Spanish were dropped because of the insufficient number of graduate faculty members and the graduate enrollment within these departments.

Significant Program Changes

The MAT degree in English was replaced by Option 2 for the MA degree in English. This option consists of 30 hours of graduate courses in English, of which at least 15 must be at the 600 level and competency in a foreign language. Six additional hours in an approved related field for a total of 36 hours may be substituted for the foreign language.

65

203

50

Minority and International Student Affairs: The International Students Program has been strengthened to meet the needs of the International Students. This year an adviser to International and Minority Students was appointed on a part-time basis. He is working very closely with this group of students and relations are good. The Office of the Dean of Student Affairs assisted the International Student Association in sponsoring the annual International Luncheon. It was attended by approximately 500 people and \$800 was realized in profit. This money will be used for an International Student Loan Fund.

<u>Black Student Union</u>: The President of the Black Student Union asked that the BSU Room be converted into general university use since there is no longer a need for it. The furnishings in the room have been returned to general inventory.

<u>Fulbright-Hays Scholarship</u>: For the first time, a Murray State University graduate, Robert Johnson, is the recipient of the Fulbright-Hays Scholarship award.

Student Help Loan Fund: Nineteen students were granted interest-free loans totaling \$733.50. The average amount of loan was \$38.60. As of May 30, 1973, a balance of \$769.87 was on deposit.

<u>Open House Policy</u>: The Board of Regents approved an Open House Policy which states that eight open houses may be held in each dormitory during the school year. Open houses are to be scheduled between the hours of 1 p.m. and 6 p.m. on Saturday or Sunday. Supervision is provided by the Hall Council members and the Dormitory Director. All of the dormitories participated in this event and three to five open houses were held in each dormitory during the spring semester, 1973.

Alpha Lambda Delta: Eighty-two freshmen women had a grade point average of 3.5 or better and were eligible for membership in Alpha Lambda Delta. Forty-six accepted membership and were installed in April, 1973. Senior certificates were presented to twenty-nine women who were members of Alpha Lambda Delta and had maintained a 3.5 standing or better throughout their college careers.

<u>Panhellenic Council</u>: The Panhellenic Council has continued its program to assist in the recruitment of students. They have invested in several informative brochures to be sent to high school seniors and their parents.

<u>Fraternities</u>: The Interfraternity Council was revised and a new constitution was adopted. Fifteen fraternities are established on campus including 13 national fraternities.

Freshman Residence Hall Program: The present Freshman Residence Hall Program for men has been so successful that plans are being made to include some women residence advisers who will be working in Springer Hall with freshman women.

Housing Facilities: 1,752 of the 1,857 rooms on campus were in use at the beginning of the fall semester. Ninety-four percent of the rooms were utilized; 630 private rooms were rented during the fall semester. Fall semester full time enrollment was 5,566; 2,763 of these resided in residence halls, or 50 percent of the total enrollment lived in the residence halls. This was an increase of 2 percent over the past two academic years. Of the 2,763 residents in the dorms, 1,991 were Kentucky residents. Seven hundred and seventy-two were non-residents.

Of the 3,699 available beds, 2,763 were used; 936 beds were empty; 74 percent of the beds were utilized.

The Hart Hall Bookstore was converted into a co-ed lounge and recreation area. Renovation of the Orchard Heights married student housing has continued.

<u>Summer Housing</u>: Numerous workshops, institutions, and conferences utilized campus housing during the summer.

Student Health Services: Dr. William M. Savage served during the year 1972-73 as school physician. Dr. Savage died quite unexpectedly of a heart attack May 28, 1973. He was well respected by all who knew him and will be very difficult to replace.

A total number of 13,501 students were seen between July 1, 1972, and May 31, 1973; 139 were confined for treatment in the infirmary. During the spring semester, nursing students assisted the physician in three separate evening clinics to conduct pap smear tests and venereal disease cultures with the cancer detection program provided by the Department of Health. One hundred forty one patients were seen. It is the belief of the department that the venereal disease rate was much decreased.

Facilities are being improved by the addition of new waiting room furniture and carpeting.

Sterilization techniques were changed during the year with the purchase of a new Ritter steam sterilizer. Laboratory equipment so sorely needed during the past year was provided through purchase and through borrowing from the school physician; thus, increasing the efficiency of the department.

Mrs. Mollie Jones, a former nurse with Student Health Services, was killed in an automobile accident in February. Her loss is felt very keenly by the students, faculty, and especially by those with whom she worked.

<u>Placement</u>: From June 30, 1972, through May 30, 1973, there were 18 school systems that visited the campus 19 times and interviewed 257 prospective teachers. There were 38 business and industry and governmental agencies that visited the campus 57 times and interviewed 503 prospective employees. Placement Service received 980 letters from school systems listing vacancies; 113 letters were received from business and industry and governmental agencies. Telephone calls numbered 272. These figures continue to be lower each year than the previous year. The teaching situation is expected to remain in trouble through the 1970's, possibly into the 1980's. Ten new business and industry and governmental agencies recruited on the campus for the first time in 1972-73.

National Direct Student Loan (formerly National Defense Student Loan): The amount advanced in student loans from this fund during the 1972-73 year was \$514,925. Eight hundred nine students participated and the average loan was \$636. This loan program continues to be a major source of funds for assisting students.

Norris (Short Term) Student Loan: During the 1972-73 school year, 600 students received short-term loans totaling \$80,000. Many of these students borrowed two or more times from the fund as evidenced by 725 advances.

The Norris Loan Fund is a very important part of the University's total student financial aid operation. This program permits a student with an urgent financial need and with the ability to repay in a short time funds which can be obtained in a minimum of time.

Nursing Student Loan: This program permitted 67 students to receive \$47,500 for the year. The average loan for the year was \$709.

<u>Federally Insured (Bank) Loan</u>: The Student Financial Aid Office recommended a total of 1,100 student loans for the year. (Of the total number of applications completed, 750 were from in-state students and 350 from out-of-state students.) The maximum loan per student is \$1,500, and it is estimated that MSU students received in excess of \$1.5 million from participating banks, credit unions and savings and loan associations. The office furnishes information, counsels and assists students in seeking this type of financial aid. The office certifies the student's scholastic standing, major, home address, school classification, and expected date of graduation. A recommendation for each loan is made by the Director of Student Financial Aid.

<u>Cuban Student Loan</u>: Loans were advanced to one Cuban student in the amount of \$500.

Law Enforcement Loans: Law Enforcement Loans were advanced to three students majoring in Criminology and Corrections. A total of \$1,312 was advanced to these students during the 1972-73 year.

Law Enforcement Grants: This program provides direct student grants to students that are employed full time in Law Enforcement, Corrections, or the Courts. The grant pays the costs of registration fees and books. A total of . 20 students received \$5,968 for the year.

Educational Opportunity Grant (EOG): The EOG Program permits eligible students to receive a non-repayable award of funds, based on exceptional financial need and evidence of academic or creative promise. A total of \$116,075 was granted to 238 students for the year. Grants ranged from \$200 to \$1,000. The average grant was \$488 for the year.

<u>Nursing Scholarship</u>: The Nursing Scholarship Program is a total Federally funded grant, patterned after the Educational Opportunity Grant Program. This program permitted 37 students to receive \$22,500. The average Nursing Scholarship for the year was \$608.

<u>Federal Work-Study and University Student Employment Program</u>: Student employment continues to be the most popular type of financial assistance administered by MSU. During the year, an estimated 1,385 students received an estimated \$597,564. The estimate is due to the June, 1973, payroll being paid in July, 1973. Of the total number employed, 700 were on the Federal Work-Study Program and 685 were on the University Student Employment Program. The rate of pay was \$1.60 per hour. In addition to the on-campus employment, there were four agencies employing students off campus under the Federal Work-Study Program.

BUSINESS AFFAIRS

Accounting

Implementation of Commissioner's Order 72-537 permitting local payment for most purchases has resulted in providing a more current "available funds balance" for budgetary control purposes. Prompt payment of suppliers is also enhanced by this system.

Auditing

An audit of our telephone billing and service resulted in increasing the number of instruments having direct access to the State WATS System, addition of one State WATS line, and selected installation of timed Eastern U.S. WATS service where economies could be realized (football and basketball offices). Changes were made in department telephone installations to effect economies without decreasing necessary service. An additional timed service for the Eastern U.S. has also been added to our switchboard number for use as required.

Auxiliary Services

Food Service: Conversion of the Student Union Cafeteria into a Snack Bar operation was accomplished and appears to have been well received and patronized by the University community.

Net current income from Food Service operations was \$147,414.10 on gross receipts of \$916,081.39. This net income reflects as revenue to the Housing and Dining System of the University.

Recreation Rooms: Net current income of \$319.56 resulted from gross receipts of \$7,518.15. This income also is a part of the Housing and Dining System.

The Student Union Recreation Room has been discontinued with this space to be developed into a dining area for banquets. The pool tables will be moved into Ordway Hall which is being developed into an expansion of Student Union operations.

Post Office: The contract with the U.S. Postal Service to operate a contract station has been extended one year for the amount of \$3,815.00.

The post office facility is being expanded to include a portion of that space formerly used as a student lounge area in order to alleviate crowded conditions and enable the post office to provide a more complete service. University Bookstore: Renovation of the bookstore to provide one centrally located store operation was completed and the Hart Hall branch store was discontinued. It is felt that better service to the University community has resulted.

Personnel

Unemployment Compensation: Our employees became eligible for this insurance during this fiscal year. We were able to effect some considerable saving from possible costs under this insurance by affording summer work opportunities to employees who were not scheduled to work (particularly in the Food Service area) and would otherwise have been able to claim unemployment benefits.

Purchasing and General Services

An electronic equipment repairman was added to the Office Machine Repair Shop on May 1, 1973. It is anticipated that this will result in a saving of repair costs and will greatly reduce "down time" of equipment caused by shipping for repairs (particularly a problem in video tape equipment used in instruction).

Advance purchase of products from expiring price contracts resulted in considerable saving to the institution from the prices on the new contracts. Price increases averaged approximately 13% on the new contracts. The purchase of needed paper products for the University and office and classroom furniture for the Stadium and Ordway Hall effected a total saving of approximately \$13,900.00.

PUBLIC RELATIONS

In addition to a wide variety of routine responsibilities and services to students, faculty and staff, the Public Relations personnel--

- 1. assumed publication of THE MURRAY STATE ALUMNUS, the official magazine of the Alumni Association, following the death of its editor. Three, 24-page editions were produced.
- provided leadership for the "Day of Rededication" program, a key 50th Anniversary Year observation on September 17, 1972, and the continuation of the University's over-all Golden Anniversary Year observance.
- provided all written copy and pictures for an 80-page special edition of THE MAYFIELD MESSENGER commemorating the University's first 50 years. The edition is scheduled for printing in mid-September, 1973.
- 4. planned, organized, and conducted its third annual "Press Appreciation Day" on November 22, 1972. Approximately 75 newspaper, television and radio representatives attended.

SCHOOL RELATIONS

A total of 5,446 high school students from 297 high schools were personally contacted. Students in these schools completed information cards and were mailed the various application forms, along with general and subject matter information. Twenty-seven faculty and staff members participated directly in one of the visitation programs.

One hundred twenty-nine junior college students were contacted in 14 different institutions.

The School Relations Department administered the academic scholarship program. A total of 862 applications were processed--561 applications were from Kentucky residents and 301 were made by out-of-state students. The following is a breakdown of the scholarships that have been awarded to date: President's, 36; Board of Regents, 89; special subject matter, 30; subject matter, 61; dormitory, 222. An attractive display cabinet was secured from surplus property through Central Supply. The display case is centrally located on the first floor lobby of the Administration Building.

A concerted effort was made by all members of the School Relations staff to get more prospective students on campus. Two hundred twenty-five accepted our invitation and spent the night in one of our dormitories. Approximately 800 different individuals were guests for meals in the cafeteria or Thoroughbred Room.

Dennis Ferry attended the Mercer County Community College Career Day held in Trenton, New Jersey, and Mrs. H. Farley McElroy was our representative at the Gulf Coast Community College Career Day in Panama City, Florida. Personnel in the Alumni Office were helpful in making contact and arranging these activities. Carla Coffey and Jan Bittenbach served as hostesses for the Louisville Orientation meeting.

PRINTING

The Department of Printing Services was involved in a number of new projects during the Fiscal Year 1972-73. The Department set up a black and white film processor that had been stored in the Department of Education to be used for processing game film taken of all football and basketball games. The processor is available to serve the needs of other departments on campus.

Dr. Ralph H. Woods' book, "THE FIRST FIFTY YEARS -- A HISTORY OF MURRAY STATE UNIVERSITY," was completed during this year. The department did all composition, design, layout and printing of the 576-page book. One thousand books were processed with soft covers on campus. Two thousand books are being bound with hard covers by a commercial firm.

For the first time in the history of the University, the General Catalog was completely designed, printed, and bound by the Department of Printing.

The department also printed the 600-page "Self-Study Summary Report," to the Southern Association of Colleges and Schools and the 630-page, three volume, NCATE Study. These reports were printed in the Copy Center and perfect bound in the General Printing area.

ALUMNI AFFAIRS

The objective of the Murray State University Alumni Association is to unite the alumni body so that it will promote the interest of Alma Mater in every possible way.

The most recent membership report indicates that we have 4,560 active alumni contributors on June 30, 1973. This increased from 3,345 last year.

One of the most significant achievements of Alumni Affairs during the year was the transfer of all alumni records (19,000) and the addition of the records of new graduates to computer. The transfer has indicated that a more accurate and attractive "printout" of names, addresses of members and non-members can be obtained.

Alumni club meetings played an important part in the Association's program in 1972-73. They afforded hundreds of Murray alumni the opportunity to visit with their friends and help the University in bringing about a better understanding of its problems and opportunities. Meetings were held in Fort Lauderdale, Florida; Sanford, Florida; Washington, D.C.; and Caldwell County, Princeton, Kentucky.

As a part of the 1973 Alumni Banquet program, eight permanent scholarships financed by the Association were awarded. Three were presented for the first time: The Dr. Rainey T. Wells--Michael Ray Bright, winner; the Bill Douglas--Karen Gay Hendon, winner; and the George S. Hart--Mary Jo Arflack, winner.

In addition to the permanent scholarships, funds were raised by the Alumni Association for the sixteen general alumni scholarships presented in memory of Dr. Marvin O. Wrather and the Pace Scholarship presented to a deserving high school graduate from Livingston County. The value of scholarships presented in 1972-73 amounted to \$12,850. Funds raised for scholarships totaled \$30,375.

. .

The Alumni Association was instrumental in helping the University initiate the Harry Lee Waterfield Governmental Studies Foundation. The Foundation was established to encourage and support studies in county, municipal, and state government.

LIBRARIES

Using a conservative count, our present holding in volumes as of July 1, 1973, is 270,103. Using a liberal version of the Washington State Count, our holdings come to 338,057. If we were to count all substantial books, pamphlets, and reports which are cataloged under some library system, regardless of form, our volume count rises to 395,003. Three standards for colleges and universities as applied to Murray State University in the Kuhlman Survey of 1968 and averaged resulted in the figure of 360,000 volumes as suggested for us as a collection-building goal. Even by the most conservative standards, our volume holdings are substantial.

During the year, the Harry Lee Waterfield Graduate Reading Room was opened on the top floor of the Main Library. The Graduate Carrels have all been transferred to this floor, and the faculty offices have been separated and placed on the mezzanine below. Two seminar rooms and a typing room with two typewriters may be signed for in the Reference Department. The Waterfield collage and items from his collection on display have attracted much attention and have been visited by many students and members of the public. Books that do not circulate from the library may be used in the Seminar Rooms.

Mr. Charles F. Hinds, who has been Director of Libraries at Murray State for the past six years, has resigned to accept a post with the State Department of Libraries.

FINANCIAL REPORT

The following chart indicates a close estimate of income and expenditures for the fiscal year 1972-73. Our accounts will close on September 30, 1973, for the year ending June 30, 1973. A complete and detailed report of actual operations will be made soon after September 30, 1973.

INCOME

	Actual 1971-72 F	Actual 1971-72 F. Y.		Estimated 1972-73 F. Y.	
State Appropriation	\$ 9,462,550	63.5%	\$11,209,740	72.6%	
Student Fees	2,100,725	14.1	1,104,166*	7.1	
Other Income	1,457,069	9.8	1,298,857	8.4	
Federal Student Aid	360,572	2.4	280,000	1.8	
Auxiliary Enterprises	1,515,867	10.2	1,558,000	10.1	
Total	\$14,896,783	100.0%	\$15,450,763	100.0%	

*The large decrease in Student Fees is due to the increase in debt service causing a decrease in excess Consolidated Education Building Fees.

EXPENDITURES

	Actual 1971-72 F. Y.		Estimated 1972-73 F. Y.	
General Administration	\$ 364,412	2.4%	\$ 482,980	3.1%
Staff Benefits	660,283	4.4	745,300	4.8
Student Services	495,266	3.3	494,882	3.2
Gen. Institutional Expense	831,903	5.6	978,631	6.3
Instructional Costs	7,000,552	47.0	7,280,255	47.1
Organized Activities	372,916	2.5	395,660	2.6
Libraries	646,887	4.3	657,315	4.3
Public Service	25,570	. 2	24,782	. 2
Maintenance & Operations	1,518,725	10.2	1,650,696	10.7
Agriculture Lab.	97,088	.7	85,474	.6
Auxiliary Enterprises	1,566,113	10.5	1,616,184	10.5
Student Aid	· 264,170	1.8	336,414	2.1
Working Capital	1,052,898		702,190	4.5
Total	\$14,896,783	100.0%	\$15,450,763	100.0%

APPLIED SCIENCES AND TECHNOLOGY

Several significant gains were made in the School of Applied Sciences and Technology during the past year. Among these were professional improvement of the faculty, an increase in faculty research and publications, and a number of special programs designed to more effectively meet the needs of students and the people in the region served by the University. Although there was a modest decrease in enrollment in Agriculture, Home Economics, and Industrial Education, enrollment increased in Nursing and Vocational and Technical Education.

Agriculture

Although no new degree programs were added in Agriculture during the past year, a number of courses were restructured and up-dated. Several improvements were achieved in the horsemanship program. Chief among these were the addition of an outside riding arena, six horse paddocks, watering units in all horse stalls and a horse walker. The dairy herd continues to be one of the top producers in the state. Fourteen dairy animals were exhibited at local, regional, and state fairs, winning top honors in several classes. Numerous agricultural and farm related programs were conducted at the University Farm and Carman Livestock Pavilion. Several Agricultural workshops were conducted during the year. Among these were six workshops in agricultural engineering, two in horticulture, and one in artificial breeding. A number of beef cattle and swine shows and contests were conducted. Another highlight of the year was the awarding of a contract for architectural and engineering work for a new Exhibitors Building to be constructed at the University Farm. Cash income for the University Farms exceeded the projected estimate by some \$6,000.00 for FY 1972-73. There was a slight decrease in class enrollments 1900 compared to 2022 for the previous year, a difference of some six percent. This was due to a decrease in out-of-state students.

Home Economics

There was a slight decrease in class enrollment in Home Economics, 1608 compared to 1624 for the previous year, a difference of approximately one percent. There was, however, an increase in the number of undergraduate majors, 172 compared to 165 for 1971-72. Forty-two unduplicated graduate students were enrolled, a slight increase over the previous year. The faculty was reduced by one person for 1972-73 due to the retirement of Mrs. Elizabeth Ordway. Although no new degree programs were added, a number of significant gains were achieved. Chief among these were faculty professional improvement, restructuring and up-dating of course materials, and implementation of several special workshops. One funded in-service non-credit institute entitled "New Approaches to the Teaching of Nutrition" was conducted during the year with an enrollment of 71 participants. The faculty sponsored a number of community and adult education programs, including 4-H Club groups, adult education classes for Day Care Center personnel, and Food Service supervisors. Dr. Alice Koenecke, Chairman of the Department, was elected President of the Kentucky Home Economics Association for 1973-74, and Miss Pauline Waggener, who will be on leave next year to complete her doctorate, has been awarded the Letitia Walsh Award from Southern Illinois University, and the Kentucky Delta Kappa Gamma Scholarship. Several home economics students received honors and awards. Six graduated with honors, three were selected to Who's Who in American Colleges and Universities, and three were selected for internships in dietetics in leading hospitals.

Industrial Education

Several course changes were implemented for the past year, including the addition of six new courses. Eight courses were transferred to the Division of Vocational-Technical Education and several courses were restructured and up-dated. There was a modest decrease in class enrollment, 1886 compared to 2002 for the previous year, a difference of some 5.8 percent. This was due primarily to a reduction in out-of-state students. One faculty member will be transferred to the Division of Vocational-Technical Education, reducing the Industrial Education faculty by one person. Three faculty members have completed their course work for doctoral degrees and are currently writing their dissertations. Several faculty members have engaged in professional improvement activities, including additional summer graduate study, participation in professional seminars, workshops, and research. A number of faculty members made presentations at professional conventions. Two teacher education workshops were conducted, one in the World of Construction and another in the World of Manufacturing. Laboratory facilities were improved and expanded, including the addition of a plastic granulator, donated by Fisher-Price Toy Company, and an X-ray machine for research and experimentation in woods, plastics, and metals. The demand for Industrial Education graduates continues to exceed by far the supply.

Nursing

There was a slight increase in nursing student enrollment over the past year. In the academic year of 1972-73 there were 77 freshmen, 77 sophomores, 48 juniors, and 32 seniors, an increase of two students over the previous year. The number of applicants for the fall semester of 1973 has increased sharply. In addition, some forty students have applied for transfer from other colleges for admission to the sophomore class. There has been notable faculty professional improvement during the year. Ruth Cole, Chairman of the Department, was awarded her doctorate at Indiana University in May of 1973. Four faculty members completed additional work toward advanced degrees. Various members of the faculty have participated in community health seminars and workshops and attended professional conventions. The Nursing faculty has begun preparation of a self-study report for the National League of Nursing visit in the spring of 1974. Two television video tape recorders and two color television monitors were added during the year. A capitation grant of \$46,169.00 was received from the Department of Health, Education, and Welfare for the improvement of teaching in nursing.

Vocational-Technical Education

Several significant gains were achieved in the Division of Vocational-Technical Education. Enrollment increased 4.3 percent, 523 compared to 501 for the previous year. A number of special seminars and institutes were conducted. Among these were: A funded Institute for Staff Development for Vocational Teachers Serving the Disadvantaged and Handicapped (a Federal-State Grant of \$13,541 was received for this project); a self-financing seminar for Administrators of Nursing Homes; and a self-financing Institute for Costmetologists. Four new courses were added and several courses were restructured and up-dated. Several occupational Proficiency Examinations were developed and administered during the year, enabling a number of vocational teachers to receive up to eighteen semester hours of college credit for occupational experience.

> 100111 -

ARTS AND SCIENCES

Enrollment Trends

The overall decrease of 1683 (-9.3%) is disappointing but was expected. Changes in basic requirements for baccalaureate degrees no doubt account for substantial parts of the decline. Some of the greatest decreases were in subjects affected by the changes, such as biology, English, history, health, and physical education. Some of the losses were offset by gains in areas benefitting from the change in degree requirements, such as social science areas other than history.

New Programs

Programs in most departments have stabilized after a few years of growth and modification. Addition of graduate programs has been postponed pending studies by the Council on Public Higher Education. Listed below are new programs developing this year.

Department

Biology

English

Program

Summer Biology Program at the Biological Station

M.A. option 2: Thesis replaced by six hours of course work and student may substitute an additional six hours of course work in a cognate field for the foreign language requirement

Health, Physical Education and Recreation

Twelve-hour certification program for teachers of driver education

Oral History Program (in planning stages)

History

Programs Dropped

Following the recommendation of the SACS evaluation committee, no candidates for the M.A. will be accepted in four fields--French, Geography, German, and Spanish.

Faculty ·

It is to be noted that our overall objective of 67% with the doctoral degree by September, 1973, has been realized (excluding the athletic coaches). Furthermore, our objective of at least 50% with the doctoral degree in each department has also been reached with the exception of the Geography Department.

We are pleased to point out that two departments have a 100% doctoral degree faculty--Philosophy and Political Science. It is interesting to note that five years ago there were no doctoral degree faculty members in the Political Science Department and only one in Philosophy. Two others, Biological Sciences and Chemistry-Geology, are practically at this level and are entirely satisfactory for our purposes. (The Geology Division is 100% doctoral faculty.) Certain other departments have a fully satisfactory degree level of their faculty.

Contributions and Noteworthy Items

Significant scholarly activity by the Arts and Sciences faculty increased during the year. Listed below are some publications reported by departments. Many faculty members attended meetings and spoke to various groups in the local area and elsewhere. Also, many faculty members were active in community service projects directly related to their professional duties.

Scholarly Publications

Dr. C. D. Wilder, Biology				
Chesapeake Science				
Register of Ky. Hist. Soc. (review)				
Dr. Marshall Gordon, Chemistry				
Journal of Heterocyclic Chemistry				
Journal of Chromatographic Science (2)				
Journal of Organic Chemistry				
Analytical Chemistry				
Drs. Joseph Hendon, Annette Gordon, and Marshall Gordon, Chemistry				
Journal of Organic Chemistry				
Dr. B. E. McClellan, Chemistry				
Analytical Chemistry				
Dr. Roy Hatton, History				
Louisiana History (review) t di tit				
Dr. W. Robert Higgins, History				
American Historical Review (review)				
Journal of Southern History (review)				
Dr. Ken Wolf, History				
The Review of Politics (2 reviews)				
Dr. Gary Jones, Mathematics				
Pacific Journal of Math				
Proceedings of the American Mathematical Society				
Rocky Mountain Journal of Math				

Scholarly Publications (Cont'd.)

- Dr. Frederick Kumar, Philosophy <u>Midwestern Journal of Philosophy</u> <u>Journal of Religious Humanism</u>
- Dr. Franklin Robinson, Philosophy Midwestern Journal of Philosophy
- Dr. Wayne Sheeks, Philosophy Journal of Opinion
- Mr. Buford Anderson, Physics Report Office Naval Reso
- Report Office Naval Research Drs. L. M. Beyer, W. E. Maddox, and L. B. Bridwell, Physics Journal Optical Soc. Am.
- Drs. L. M. Beyer, W. E. Maddox, L. B. Bridwell, and D. D. Duncan, Physics Nuclear Instr. & Meth.
- Dr. W. R. Klein, Physics

Journal Acoust. Soc. Am. (2) Dr. Howard Keller, Romance & Slavic Languages University of Miami Press (book) Russian Languages Journal (2) Journal of Russian Studies Computers and the Humanities Slavic and East European Journal (review)

Several departments have instituted or are planning significant professional activities. The American Revolution Bicentennial Symposium, sponsored by the History Department, has focused national attention on and brought noted scholars to our campus; it is possible that papers from the sessions will be published by Gregg Press. Another important innovation was founding of a journal by the Philosophy Department, <u>The Midwestern Journal of Philosophy</u>. The plan is to publish it biannually. A state-wide scholarly organization, the Kentucky Philological Association, was founded by members of the English Department. The first meeting will take place here in the spring of 1974, and an annual bulletin may be published later.

Other departments have continued commendable professional activities. As stated in the Physics Department report, "the ninth annual Western Kentucky Regional Science Fair was an enormous success." (Participating were 1000 students and 45 schools.) Departments involved were Biological Sciences, Chemistry and Geology, Mathematics, and Physics and Astronomy. The Department of Romance and Slavic Languages sponsored the annual Mardi Gras Fiesta and a Foreign Language Festival. The Department of Sociology and Anthropology held the second annual Kentucky Criminal Justice Conference.

The Department of Physics and Astronomy held several seminars, and the Department of Philosophy instituted two series of Colloquia.

Some departments have provided professional services both on campus and in the community and region. The special talents of members of the Department of Communications often have been utilized in workshops and other activities. The Department of Health, Physical Education and Recreation once again has sponsored workshops and clinics for area students and teachers, and this year the department co-directed the Special Olympics for the mentally retarded. The Department of History has established a "Speakers Bureau" for area school and service groups. The Department of Military Science conducted marksmanship and safety clinics and compass training for local youths.

Special efforts by some departments to enhance educational opportunities through the acquisition of valuable instructional and research materials should be noted. Such an item is the carbon rod atomizer accessory acquired by Chemistry-Geology. Geography added about 200 volumes to the departmental library. Physics-Astronomy has made operational a molecular physics research facility. Romance and Slavic Languages installed a new language laboratory and acquired both a sizable quantity of audiovisual aids and additional works for the departmental library. Several archaeological collections from LBL and the Jackson Purchase area were added by Sociology-Anthropology.

The Department of Chemistry and Geology reports that Murray State University is one of only a few schools with three listings in the Southern Regional Education Board's "Catalog of Uncommon Facilities in Southern Universities, 1973." Listed are the Hancock Biological Station, Mass Spectrometer-Gas Chromatograph-Computer Facility, and the Van de Graaf Accelerator. Other honors and recognition have been accorded to departments in the School of Arts and Sciences. A local chapter of the professional journalism fraternity, Sigma Delta Chi, has been established with the aid of Dr. Neil Woodruff, Journalism. <u>Notations</u>, the literary magazine sponsored by Dr. Charles Daughaday and Dr. Kent Forrester, English, was chosen by the Kentucky Arts Commission as one of the best publications of its kind in the state. Military Science coached rifle and pistol teams again brought recognition to the University, placing high in national competition and having two members of the All-American First Team.

BUSINESS

Enrollment

	<u>1971-1972</u>	<u>1972-1973</u>
Summer	641	524
Fall Intersession	40	42
Fall*	3989	3878
Spring	3912	3824
Spring Intersession	90	63
Total	8672	8331

*Does not include Freshman Orientation

Programs

Significant progress was made during the year in the development of two new courses which will be initiated during the 1973-74 academic year. These two courses, "The Legal, Social, and Political Environment of Business" and "Business Policy" which will serve as a capstone course for all business majors, are needed to meet requirements of the common body of knowledge recommended by the American Assembly of Collegiate Schools of Business.

Faculty

Dr. Michael J. Gardone, Associate Professor of Economics and Director of the Bureau of Business Research, resigned to accept a position with the Council on Public Higher Education.

Dr. Jules Harcourt was appointed Associate Dean of the School of Business.

Outstanding Contributions

Dr. Roy Kirk, Mr. Eugene Hurn, Mr. Delbert Honchul, Dr. James Thompson, Dr. Gilbert Mathis, and Mr. Howard Newell had articles published during the year.

Mrs. Verda Happy has published a third edition of her book, "Bulletin Boards for Busy Teachers."

Mr. Robert McCann co-authored "The Community College Transfer at MSU: A Descriptive and Comparative Survey."

Several faculty members participated in regional, state, and hational organizations:

Mrs. LaVerne Ryan - National Editor of Pi Omega Pi and State Adviser of Phi Beta Lambda

Dr. John Devine served on several state-wide committees for Business Education

Professors Eugene Flood, Delbert Honchul, Eugene Hurn, and James Overby were discussion leaders in several professional conferences and workshops. Dr. Roy V. Kirk - A member of the research committee for the Academy of Management

Dr. William J. Grasty - President of the Kentucky Association of Accounting Professors

Dean Philip Tibbs - Murray State University's representative on a consortium on revenue sharing

Other Significant Developments

The School of Business published two issues of <u>Business Dynamics</u> during the year. The mailing list for this publication was increased from 1200 to 1500 including major colleges and universities through the United States. We would like to make this a quarterly publication but are unable to do so because of limited funds.

The academic qualifications of the School of Business faculty increased significantly during the year. The number of faculty holding the doctorate increased from 27% to 40%. The number holding doctorates should increase substantially during the year since six of the current faculty are A.B.D. with four or five of these expected to complete during 1973-74. We also have six faculty members on leave who are actively pursuing the doctorate. In addition, two faculty members should complete their Ed.S. during the summer.

The School of Business faculty is continuing to work diligently to become accredited by the American Assembly of Collegiate Schools of Business.

The School of Business continued with the student evaluation of the faculty. However, the data for the spring semester, 1973, have not yet been analyzed.

The School of Business hosted the FBLA Conference in April

The School of Business hosted the DECA Conference in April.

The School of Business hosted the annual State Business Education Teacher Conference in August.

A business advisory council is under consideration at the present time and should be implemented during the 1974-1975 academic year.

FINE ARTS

The School of Fine Arts, completing its fourth year as a school and its second year in the new Price Doyle Fine Arts Center, continues to grow in both quality and quantity of students, artistic output, and educational development. While teaching more students than the previous year, both in terms of class enrollments and majors, the faculty and administration also provided the arena for more and finer artistic productions. The number and quality of recitals, exhibitions, and theatrical productions exceeds previous efforts.

During the year, the School of Fine Arts developed the Summer Arts Academy. A series of workshops, five for public school teachers and four for high school students, covers all areas of the arts. This venture in service and educational outreach will involve numerous individuals from offcampus. At the same time, it will provide an enriched cultural environment for Murray State during the Summer 1973.

Throughout the year, Fine Arts has sought to implement procedures and policies which would facilitate quality instruction and to reassess the present position and chart new directions for the various segments of the School. A great deal of time was spent in self-evaluation of courses and administrative procedures. The results of these efforts will become increasingly evident in the years to come.

The faculty and students of the School of Fine Arts are a professionally active group. Continuing involvement with exhibitions, theatrical productions,

recitals, concerts, and other artistic endeavors is an essential ingredient in the quality of the School and the lives of the individuals who are involved.

The Department of Art developed a new undergraduate program in art education and reviewed present and projected programs. A vital gallery program provided much enrichment for the entire area served by the University. Departmental and individual efforts went into numerous exhibitions, consultations and related professional involvements. Continuing efforts in the Art Honors Workshops proved successful.

The Department of Music had a productive year. The Quad-State Festivals increased in quality for the twenty-fifth consecutive year, the Purchase Area Youth Symphony continues to develop; and the thirty-sixth annual production of Campus Lights provided educational experience for the participants, entertainment for the public, and scholarships for deserving freshmen. Other recitals and concerts contributed greatly to the musical climate of the area.

The Division of Theatre Arts presented an expanded schedule of excellent productions. In addition to four major productions, the division sponsored a student-directed show which toured high schools in three states, and a series of student-directed one-act plays on campus. Theatre Arts was the featured academic area during Murray State's Fiftieth Anniversary Homecoming celebration. Theatre Arts students continued their active involvement in university, public school, and community productions and ventures.

EDUCATION

The enrollment in the School of Education of 9,881 for the academic year 1972-73 represented an increase of 41 students over the 1971-72 academic year. Summer school enrollment in 1972 declined 147 students from 2,220 students in 1971 to 2073 students in 1972.

New Programs Added

The Department of Special Education established the Murray State University Learning Disability Center, funded by a grant provided by the Department of Health, Education, and Welfare.

The Departments of Educational Services and Secondary Education in cooperation with Paducah City Schools initiated an experimental program for a small group of Student Teachers on a full-semester basis. Students in this program will do the full professional semester in the local setting.

Significant Program Changes

The Department of Elementary Education has expanded the provision of laboratory experience of elementary education majors who now get first hand experience with the children from their Freshman year through the Senior year.

The Department of Secondary Education has facilitated more individualized learning by Secondary education students in their study of the Public School System and Teaching Methods and Strategies. Education 310 has been reorganized into a series of Self-Instructional Units and Education 311 has been subdivided into "Essentials" and "Options." Each student is privileged to choose appropriate units of study from a list of optional units.

The University School has moved from the traditional self-contained classroom operation to a modified plan of Individualized Instruction, team teaching and multi-age grouping.

Faculty Retirement

Miss Hazel Tarry retired.

Dr. Eugene Russell promoted to Associate Professor

Dr. Barr Taylor promoted to Associate Professor

Dr. Bobby Malone promoted to Associate Professor

Dr. Charles Tolley promoted to Associate Professor

Dr. John Wells promoted to Associate Professor

Outstanding Contributions of Faculty

School Administration & Supervision: Dr. S. M. Matarazzo published a study of Capital Outlay Expenditures in Kentucky.

Elementary Education: Miss Rubie Smith was named Distinguished Professor by the Murray State University Alumni Association. Dr. Doris Mouser appeared on the program of National Science Teacher Association's National Convention. Dr. James Carlin Assisted in planning a Micro-Workshop for the International Reading Association in Denver, Colorado.

Guidance:

Dr. Ben Humphreys secured HEW support for Rehabilitation Services Education through a grant of \$12,000 for the next four years.

Library Science: Dr. Edwin C. Strohecker was elected Ky. State Chairman of the Advisory Committee on Southeastern States Cooperative Library Survey.

Secondary Education: Dr. William Ryan was elected president of the Murray Campus Chapter of Phi Delta Kappa.

Special Education: Mrs. Billie Downing and Ms. Rita Byrd co-authored a renewal grant proposal for HEW funds that was approved for \$25,000. Dr. John Bartholomy was appointed Project Director for the new MSU Speech and Hearing Rehabilitation Center grant funded under HEW's Hill-Burton provision in excess of \$500,000.

Educational Services: Drs. Robert Fox and William Price published a follow-up study of MSU Teacher Education Graduates.

University School: Dr. Janice Hooks was the guest speaker of the First and Second District Supervisor's meeting. Mrs. Jo Lovett was elected president of the Murray State University Education Association.

Other Developments

2

The Psychology Department moved to Wells Hall and the Psychological Center, directed by Drs.Segal and Muehleman, served a total of 179 clients during the past year.

The Faculty and Students of the Speech and Hearing Division provided speech and hearing diagnostic screening services to 8,335 clients in West Kentucky and Tennessee in off-campus clinic programs. Four hundred fifty-three children and adults received complete speech and hearing evaluation on campus.

The Upward Bound Program received publicity in <u>Perspective Magazine</u>, Winter 1972, TVA Publication. An article concerning Upward Bound was published in the June 1973 issue of <u>National Geographic</u>.

The department of intercollegiate athletics at Murray State University compiled a very outstanding and successful record in their men's and women's varsity intercollegiate programs during the past school year (1972-73). The highly sought Ohio Valley Conference All Sports Trophy returned to the campus again this year, marking the eighth time in the past 11 years that the Murray State University athletic program has either won the All Sports Trophy or placed second in the competition. This year's All Sports Championships was one of the most gratifying for it was accomplished in a year in which none of our varsity squads won an individual conference championship. The real strength of our program, as in past years, came from excellent overall balance. This balance enabled us to gain a narrow one point win in the All Sports race over arch rival, Western Kentucky. The championship total of 83 points was achieved through three second place finishes in the sports of basketball, baseball, and cross country, third place finishes in track and tennis, sixth in football, and seventh in golf. The soccer squad, although not considered in total points for the Conference All Sports competition, nonetheless completed their season with a second place finish in the Kentucky Intercollegiate Soccer Tournament.

<u>Football</u>: Coach Bill Furgerson's football squad posted a 4-6 season record. In conference competition, they won two games and lost five and finished in a tie for sixth place.

<u>Cross Country</u>: Coach Bill Cornell's cross country squad completed another outstanding season with a seasonal record of five wins and two losses in dual meet competition and a second place finish in the conference meet:

Soccer: The soccer team was handled this past season by a graduate assistant, Carmelo Rago. The squad had a seasonal record of three wins and three losses against very excellent competition and finished the season by placing second in the Kentucky Intercollegiate Soccer Tournament.

Basketball: The Racer basketball team completed its 14th consecutive winning season with a record of 19-8 and a second place finish in the Ohio Valley Conference. The basketball team has now won the Conference Championship or finished second six times in the past seven years. The Ohio Valley Conference initiated a new regional basketball television series this winter, and the Racers appeared in two of the telecasts which originated on the Murray State campus.

Indoor and Outdoor Track: Coach Bill Cornell's indoor track season was highly successful and produced seven new school records. Three individual performers and the Mile Relay Team qualified for the NCAA Indoor Championship in Detroit, Michigan.

<u>Tennis</u>: Coach Purcell's squad posted one of the finest season records in recent years by winning 21 matches and losing six. Their conference record was 6-1. The squad finished third in the Ohio Valley Conference meet held in Morehead, Kentucky.

<u>Golf</u>: The golf team, coached by Buddy Hewitt, experienced an "off year" following last year's Ohio Valley Conference Championship. The squad, however, played an integral part in winning the All Sports Championship by managing to come from behind during the last day of competition and capture seventh place in the Conference Golf Meet.

<u>Baseball</u>: Baseball at Murray State this season was typical of the outstanding squads Coach Reagan has produced year after year since his arrival on the Murray State campus. The baseball team became the first team to win 30 games in a single season, finishing the season with a 30 and 11 overall record. The team also became the first Murray State baseball squad to receive national ranking. They were ranked 19th among major universities during the season. The team won its 10th divisional championship in the last 14 years, and virtually rewrote the MSU baseball record book. The squad lost a two-outof-three playoff series against Morehead University, the Eastern Division Champions. The series was played at Morehead, Kentucky. The results of the series placed the Racer baseball team in second place in the final conference standings.

80

<u>Women's Tennis</u>: Miss Nita Graham's women's tennis squad finished the season undefeated in dual meet competition with a 7-0 record.

<u>Women's Basketball</u>: Mrs. Rowlett's basketball squad posted a 7-4 seasonal record and finished second in the State Women's Intercollegiate Basketball Tournament and qualified to advance to the Regional Tournament.

<u>Women's Volleyball</u>: Dr. Nan Ward's Volleyball team, in only its second year of competition, had a seasonal record of 8-2 and finished as the runnerups in the Kentucky Women's Intercollegiate Volleyball Tournament for the second year in a row. They won the Murray State Invitational Volleyball Tournament from an outstanding field of women's volleyball teams representing four states.

<u>Women's Track</u>: The women's track squad was coached by graduate assistants, Linda Stegner and Pat Ward. Highlights of their season included winning the Murray Women's Invitational Track Meet and placing third in the Memphis Intercollegiate Invitational Track Meet.

The past athletic year was one in which many outstanding individual achievements and honors were obtained by Murray State University athletes. Those most noteworthy were the following:

- Two members of the Murray State Cross Country team, Sam Torres and Gregg Fullarton, qualified for the NCAA championship meet in Houston, Texas.
- 2. George Greenfield and Chuck Cantrell, members of the Racer football squad, were named to the Ohio Valley Conference team.
- 3. George Greenfield set a new single season rushing record in football, and, in addition, was named offensive "Player of the Year" in the Ohio Valley Conference.
- 4. All Ohio Valley Conference honors were awarded to two members of the Murray State basketball squad, Senior, Les Taylor, and Sophomore, Michael Coleman.
- 5. Les Taylor was voted the "Player of the Year" in the Ohio Valley Conference for the second consecutive season. In addition, he received an award from <u>Inside Kentucky Sports</u> acclaiming him the "Kentucky College Basketball Player of the Year." Les also received the KFVS-TV trophy as the "Outstanding Murray State Athlete." He was selected by both the NBA and the ABA in their spring college draft.
- 6. Jesse Williams, a freshman who earned a starting position on this year's Racer basketball team, was selected for the Mayfield Messenger's "Outstanding Freshman Athlete" award.
- 7. Mikko Horsma, one of Coach Purcell's outstanding Finnish players on the tennis squad, won the Ohio Valley Conference Tennis Singles Championship at the number two position. He was also voted the squad's "Most Valuable Player."
- 8. The Paducah Sun Democrat's "Scholar Athlete" trophy was awarded this year to Johnny Quertermous, an outstanding member of the golf squad. He is also a candidate for a NCAA post graduate scholarship award.
- 9. In track, a new triple jump record was established this season by Granville Buckley. Sam Torres established a new school record in the one mile run, and Fred Sowerby won the conference 440 yard dash, establishing a new field record at Morehead, Kentucky. Both Sam Torres and Fred Sowerby qualified for the NCAA Outdoor Championship meet at Baton Rouge, Louisiana.

10. Jan Jones set a new school record in track for the women's 440 yard dash.

We are especially proud to win the All Sports Trophy again this year, for it represents a "team" coaching effort by our staff and proclaims the Murray State Athletic Department to have conducted the best all around athletic program in the Ohio Valley Conference during the past year. The Physical Plant Department has been successful in its efforts to operate and maintain the University's physical facilities with the limited funds available. Preventive maintenance, grounds, landscape care, and housekeeping continue to receive top priority. The Department continues to be involved in major repair and renovation projects.

The Department has implemented its own water treatment program for our heating and cooling systems which will assure the University of proper and adequate treatment. Such a program will prolong the life of very expensive equipment and minimize down time. The Department now contracts only pest control and elevator maintenance services. All other services are handled by our own employees. We, along with other universities in the state, are concerned with the high cost of elevator maintenance services. The Division of Purchasing and Division of Engineering in Frankfort share our concern and are working with the universities and other state agencies to determine if there are ways in which the cost may be reduced without sacrificing safety and maintenance.

Compliance with Kentucky Air Pollution Control Commission's pollution regulations and the fuel crises have been major problems. With assistance from the Division of Engineering and a very conscientious maintenance and operational program, we are currently meeting the Commission's compliance standards. We anticipate being confronted with major and costly renovation to our present equipment if we are to meet future requirements. It is unfortunate that funds were not available to continue plans and construction of a new plant, which appears to be the final most practical solution to the problem. This project should be given top priority and revived as soon as funds will permit. This is further emphasized by the fact that natural gas was not available for the Central Heating Plant last winter, and fuel oil became unavailable at various times necessitating our shutting down the gas/oil fired boiler. If one of the old coal fired boilers should have broken down, we would have been forced to close some of our buildings.

The third and fourth floors in the south wing of Wells Hall were renovated to provide space for the Department of Psychology, making space in buildings formerly occupied by this department available for other use. With the Psychological Center already located on the second floor, this brings the Department of Psychology together in one area.

Space and darkrooms were developed in Wilson Hall to permit the Department of Geography and the <u>Shield</u> to vacate the ground floor of Wrather Hall so that it may be converted into a computer center.

Development of the Biological Station area is continuing and should be completed by the fall of 1973. A caretaker lives on the site for security purposes and to maintain the facilities and grounds.

The University continues to acquire adjacent property as it becomes available and as funds permit, with such areas being developed as part of the campus as old buildings are moved or razed.

In November of 1972, construction was resumed on the new Academic-Athletic Facility with a new contractor. Beneficial occupancy is expected by August 1973.

Construction of eight new tennis courts was completed and the courts have been opened for play. In addition, renovation and expansion of the University Bookstore and the snack bar in the Waterfield Student Union was completed for the opening of the fall semester. The decor, furnishings, and arrangements used in these two areas have received many favorable comments from students, faculty, staff, and the general public. The acceptance and greatly increased usage is evidence that the upgrading of these areas was a very wise and timely project.

Projects in various stages of planning include a Speech and Hearing Rehabilitation Center, a Livestock Show and Exposition Center, and renovation of Wrather and Ordway Halls. Ordway Hall, one of the oldest residence halls on campus, is being converted into an annex to the Waterfield Student Union Building. When completed, it will house offices for the Dean of Women, Dean of Men, the Adviser for Minority and International Students, and a counseling center. It will provide a number of meeting rooms for student groups as well as special interest activity areas. Plans also call for a spacious lounge. Following a number of studies by architects, engineers, the Division of Engineering in Frankfort, University personnel, and a committee from the Board of Regents, it was determined that the Old Laboratory Training School was in such a poor condition that it would be unwise and uneconomical to invest in the cost which would be required to repair and renovate the building necessary for its continued use. An architectural firm has been employed to prepare plans and specifications for demolition of the structure and development of the building site to blend with the surrounding campus and buildings.

In August 1972, the Security Department moved into its quarters in the Bailey House on Chestnut Street, formerly used for kindergarten purposes. The interior of the house was redecorated, grounds landscaped, and sufficient parking provided making the quarters very attractive and comfortable. The location and parking convenience has caused the office traffic from visitors, students, faculty, and staff to more than double since vacating the most inconvenient and inadequate space formerly occupied in the Student Union Building.

The transportation of ill and injured students to the Student Health Services and the local hospital and clinics continues to be one of the many services rendered by Security. Disabled students are also transported to and from classes as our schedule permits.

Motorcycles and bicycles are on the increase, with future increases anticipated due to the gas shortage. Seventy motorcycles were registered this year. Sufficient parking places appear to be available, and additional spaces for motorcycles and bicycles can be easily provided if needed.

There appears to be surplus parking available for students and faculty and staff. Parking for visitors and service vehicles is limited. These will be given consideration as the campus is remarked.

The Security officers are encouraged to attend FBI and Police Schools when they are available in our area. Several of the officers attended such schools this year dealing with bomb threats, narcotics, drugs, sex crimes, and general officer's training.

Executive Session

Chairman Doran called for executive session of the Board for the purpose of interviewing a candidate for the presidency.

The executive session ended.

Meeting Recessed

There being no further business to come before the Board, the Chairman declared the meeting recessed to reconvene at 9:00 a.m., Saturday, August 4, 1973.

eting R. Dyer